
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837  

e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 5 November 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   28 October 2013 
 

 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 1 October 2013.  (Copy enclosed.)   
 

(Pages 
1 - 6) 

3.  Declarations of Interest.  
 
(Members are no longer required to declare personal of prejudicial 
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that 
are not currently included in their Register of Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

7.  Write Offs - To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts.  (Joint report 
of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services 
and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
 
(Please note that the appendices associated with this report are not 
for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 1 (Information relating to 
any individual), 2 (Information which is likely to reveal the identity 
of an individual) and 3 (Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and are therefore attached to this agenda as 
item 11.) 
 

(Pages 
7 - 10) 

8.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. -  
 

Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 
special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 

be dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure Rules 

  

 



9.  To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 
of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 

10.  Write Offs - Appendix.  (Enclosed.) (Pages 
11 - 18) 

 
11.  Environmental Services Organisational and Services Review - To 

present a summary of the formal consultation responses received and to 
seek authority to implement a re-structure of Environmental Services at 
Breckland District Council and South Holland District Council; to share 
further positions between the Authorities; and to introduce headline 
improvement plans, to address areas of weakness identified within the 
review process.  (Joint Report of the Portfolio Holder Waste 
Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning and the Director 
of Commissioning enclosed.) 

(Pages 
19 - 40) 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 14 - 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 1 October 2013 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader, in the Chair) 

 

M G Chandler 
R Gambba-Jones 
 

H R Johnson 
C J Lawton 
 

G J Taylor 
 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

A Casson, P E Coupland, S-A Slade and A R Woolf 

Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Director Commissioning, Business Operations 
Manager and Member Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G A Porter 
(Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council), B Alcock 
(Chairman Performance Monitoring Panel), A Harrison (Chairman Personal 
Development Panel) and A M Newton (Independent Group Leader), together with 
Community Representatives: Ladey Adey (South Lincolnshire Community Voluntary 
Service) and Maureen Scantlebury (Welland Seniors Forum).   
 
In Attendance:  Councillor G R Aley (Chairman Governance and Audit Committee) 
and Councillor M D Seymour (Vice-Chairman Policy Development Panel), 
Communications Officer and the Press. 
 
Community Representatives:  Councillor Roger Perkins (South Holland Citizens 
Advice Bureau), Councillor Reginald William George Boot (Parish Councils) and 
Harry Drury (Chamber of Commerce). 
 

19. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2013 were signed by the Deputy 
Leader as a correct record. 
 

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No interests were declared. 
 

21. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET PROCEDURE RULE 2.4  

 
No questions were raised under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4. 
 

22. MATTERS SUBJECT TO CALL-IN  

 
There were no matters subject to call-in. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



- 15 - 

 

CABINET - 1 October 2013 

 

 

23. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

MONITORING PANELS  

 
There were no matters arising from the Policy Development and Performance  
Monitoring Panels. 
 

24. PINNACLE CLOSE INDUSTRIAL UNITS, CREASE DROVE, CROWLAND  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development, Commercial Assets and Strategic Planning and the Economic 
Development Manager which presented the options for utilising the £365,000 budget 
that was ring fenced for Economic Development use at Crease Drove Crowland. 
 
Councillor M G Chandler queried whether research had been carried out as to 
determine whether one lone unit was the best option.  Councillor H R Johnson 
advised that any unit built would be able to be sub-divided, as research had been 
carried out which indicated that was the case.   
 
Councillor P S Przyszlak confirmed that all units had been let or sold and a recently 
vacated unit had been re-let, therefore indicating that there was a demand as various 
units had recently been let.  
 
DECISION: 

 
a)  That the build of a 330 square metre unit at Crease Drove, Crowland, to rent on 

the open market, be approved; and 
 
b)  That the build be funded from the ring-fenced capital funding available for 

Crease Drove, Crowland, to a maximum value of £365,000. 
 
(Options:  

• Investigate the purchase of the 4 acres of adjacent land at a cost of circa 
£200,000.  This option would utilise the Crease Drove Capital for the original 
purpose; 

• Service the remaining 1 acre plot and market as serviced employment land.  
This may improve the value of the land and result in an increased (ring fenced) 
capital receipt if subsequently sold, but would not improve rental income.  It did 
utilise the Crease Drove Capital for its original purpose. 

• Market the remaining 1 acre plot as un-serviced employment land.  This option 
would not utilise the existing ring fenced funds but would increase them if sold 
at a profit;  

• Service the remaining 1 acre plot and build a further 1 or 2 industrial units.  This 
might improve the value of the land to be serviced and result in an increased 
(ring fenced) capital receipt if subsequently sold or additional rental income if 
let.  It also utilised the Crease Drove capital for its original purpose; and 

• Do nothing.  This would leave the ringfenced funds in place and result in no 
further development at Crease Drove. 

 
 

Page 2



- 16 - 

 

CABINET - 1 October 2013 

 

 

Reasons for Recommendations:  

• By building a 330 square metre unit the value of the land might be increased, 
resulting in an increased (ring fenced) capital receipt if the facility was sold or 
generated additional income through renting on the open market.  This option 
was considered to be the best option because it would offer continued 
economic growth to the area and generate further income.) 

 
25. SPRINGFIELDS S106 APPLICATIONS  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development, Commercial Assets and Strategic Planning and the Economic 
Development Manager which presented the ranked assessment results of the S106 
application process to assist members in making decisions on which applicants 
projects provided the best value for Spalding as a result on receiving S106 funding. 
 
Councillor Johnson announced a change to the recommendation within the report, as 
it was deemed more appropriate to defer the decision in order to provide the Spalding 
Town Forum with the opportunity to fully consider the projects and make 
recommendations as to whether they should be approved. 
 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones raised concerns regarding the proposed bandstand in 
Ayscoughfee Gardens and queried how the application had made it this far through 
the process, as he was aware of more cost effective options such as converting an 
existing structure in the gardens.  He requested that more clarity be given, in terms of 
what the applicant wanted and the costs involved, to be presented to the Spalding 
Town Forum meeting at which the projects would be considered.  
 
Councillor Gambba-Jones stated that the S106 money was all about the viability and 
sustainability of Spalding as a retail centre.  He supported the principle of a Town 
Centre Manager but requested clarity as to the future sustainability of the position.   
 
Members noted that Springfields had a final say over what the money was spent on, 
and a condition in place was that the retail outlet would be party to a promotion from 
the S106 money in order to combat any impact from the money being allocated to 
Spalding itself.  Councillor Gambba-Jones requested that Springfields give further 
consideration as to whether they actually needed to be involved through a promotion.   
 
Harry Drury, (Chamber of Commerce) agreed with the comments that had been 
raised and advised that he was pleased that the Chamber of Commerce would have 
the opportunity to approach the Spalding Town Forum in order to clarify their 
applications.   
 
DECISION: 

 
That the decision to approve funding for projects be deferred in favour of providing 
the Spalding Town Forum with the opportunity to review all listed projects contained 
within the report and make recommendations to Cabinet accordingly.   
 
 

Page 3



- 17 - 

 

CABINET - 1 October 2013 

 

 

(Options:  

• To fully fund one or more projects; 

• To part fund one or more projects; and 

• To decline funding for one or more projects. 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

• Decisions on funding for eligible projects set out within the report would be 
made by Cabinet.  However, providing the Spalding Town Forum with the 
opportunity to review the projects was considered to be the more appropriate 
course of action, seeing as the S106 money had been allocated for the benefit 
of Spalding.) 

 
26. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2014/15  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic  
Finance and Democratic Services, the Portfolio Holder for Internal Services,  
Performance and Business Development and the Assistant Director of 
Commissioning which presented the options for the 2014/15 Council Tax Support 
scheme, and sought approval for formal consultation in order to meet the statutory 
requirement for South Holland District Council to approve its scheme for 2014/15, by 
31 January 2014.  Furthermore, approval was sought for delegated authority to be 
given to the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive to approve the draft scheme 
and consultation approach. 
 
Councillor Przyslak recommended option 3 as the preferred approach as it was 
originally agreed by members in 2012.  Members agreed and requested that steps be 
taken to inform the Parish Councils of the effect of the changes and removal of the 
Government grant (outcome). 
 
Councillor Gambba-Jones queried where the figure of 8.5% had originated, with 
regard to the maximum Council Tax liability eligibility for all working age claimants.  
Councillor Przyslak advised that the figure had been determined by the Treasury.   
 
DECISION: 

 
a)  That the Council return to the draft scheme, as originally agreed by members in 

2012, and which was the basis for consultation for the 2013/14 scheme before 
the transitional grant announcement, be approved as the preferred option; 

 
b)  That the Leader and Chief Executive be given delegated authority to approve 

the draft scheme and consultation approach in line with the preferred option; 
and 

 
c) That steps be taken to ensure that Parish Councils were informed of the effect 

of the changes and removal of the Government grant (outcome).   
 

Page 4



- 18 - 

 

CABINET - 1 October 2013 

 

 

(Options:  

• To do nothing; 

• To make no change and retain the 2013/14 Council Tax Support scheme for 
2014/15; and 

• To design a new draft scheme from scratch on which to consult for 2014/15. 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

• A return to the original 2013/14 draft scheme, was the preferred scheme by 
Members in 2012, as outlined in Section 1.4 within the report; 

• A full consultation programme had been carried out in 2012 on that scheme.  
The results from 2012 would be considered alongside responses from this 
year’s consultation exercise where views would be sought from a representative 
sample of current Council Tax Support recipients along with other interested 
parties; 

• The final scheme for 2013/14 adopted by the Council had the effect of limiting 
the impact on working age claimants in that first year.  The transitional phased 
approach to reduce the level of CTS to 25% of baseline entitlement in year 2 
would deliver the CTS scheme originally proposed for 2013/14; 

• That option would be updated to reflect technical changes and compliance with 
the Prescribed Scheme Regulations.) 

 
(The meeting ended at 6.58 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
These minutes are published on Friday 4 October 2013.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Monday 21 October 2013 (i.e. after 
the expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless 
during that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Assistant Director Democratic Services 
requesting that the decision be called-in and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is called-in it will firstly 
be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 9 October 2013. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services 
   and the Assistant Director Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
To:    Cabinet 5 November 2013 
 
(Author:  Mark Woolerton – Recovery & Support Supervisor) 
 
Subject: Write Offs 
 
Purpose: To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND  
 
1.1 This report reviews irrecoverable debts over £1,050 which require Cabinet 

approval for write off.  A summary of these debts is shown in the table below 
and they total £97,410.19. 

 
1.2 The need to write debt off usually arises due to the debtor being 

untraceable, insolvent, ceased trading with no assets or deceased with 
insufficient funds in the estate.  Where possible all methods of recovery 
are pursued before making the decision to write off. This can include 
internal recovery action, use of debt collection agents, external tracing 
agents and procedures through the Courts. 

 
1.3      A summary of debts requiring approval for write off is given in the following 

tables. 
 
 
Value 
by 

Debtor 
     £ 

Council 
Tax 
 

    £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
      £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
      £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
    £ 

Housing 
Benefit  

Overpayments 
             £ 

 
       TOTAL 

 
              £ 

  1,050 - 
1,500 

4,453.68 2,332.71 3,125.40 - - 9,911.79 

  1,500 - 
2,000 

3,160.67 - - - - 3,160.67 

Over 
2,000 

5,350.74 61,317.03 15,485.26 2,184.70 - 84,337.73 

Total 12,965.09 63,649.74 18,610.66 2,184.70 0.00 97,410.19 

Recommendation:  
 
a) That the amounts identified in this report are approved for write off. 
 
NOTE: Please raise any queries that you may have about individual write offs, as 
included in the Appendices, with Mark Woolerton at least two working days ahead of 

the scheduled meeting. 

Agenda Item 7.

Page 7



Value Council 
Tax 
 

     £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
     £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
        £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
        £ 

Housing 
Benefit 

Overpayments 
              £ 

 
  TOTAL 

 
        £ 

 

2012/13 
Total 
written off 
in that year 

45,018.97 98,615.42 47,976.40 67,918.06 12,524.89 272,053.74 

 
 2013/14 
Previously 
approved 
write offs 

6,115.75 2,236.55 12,553.29 16,022.09 5,856.84 42,784.52 

Write offs 
included in 
this report 

12,965.09 63,649.74 18,610.66 2,184.70 0.00 97,410.19 

2013/14 
Total 
written off 
in this year 
so far 

19,080.84 
  

or 0.05% 
of 2013/14 

collectable 
debit 

65,886.29 
 

or 0.27% 
of 2013/14 

collectable 
debit 

31,163.95 
or 1.35% of 
value of all 

invoices 
raised in last 

12 months  

18,206.79 
 
 
 
 
 

5,856.84 
 
 

or 0.9% of 
repayable 

overpayments 

140,194.71 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
           Details of the individual debts are shown in the Confidential Appendices as 

listed below: 
 

� Appendix A – Council Tax 
� Appendix B – Business Rates 
� Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) 
� Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears 
� Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayments 

 
1.4 All debts approved for write off will be set against the existing bad debt 

provisions and they can be resurrected in full or in part at any time should new 
information come to light suggesting that they may be recoverable after all.  In 
every case, we believe that all collection options have been exhausted and 
that there are now no realistic prospects of recovery. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the recommendation. 
 
2.2 To approve the recommendation with amendments. 
 
2.3 Not to approve the recommendation. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 All recovery methods available have been considered and where appropriate 

pursued before making the decision to write off.   

Page 8



 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report has been written in line with the Constitution. 
 
5.2.2 The Appendices to this report are confidential as they include exempt 

information as described in Schedule 12A Part 1, Paragraph 1 (information 
relating to any individual), Paragraph 2 (information which is likely to reveal 
the identity of an individual) and Paragraph 3 (information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person [including the authority 
holding that information]). 

 
5.2.3 The anticipated benefits of publishing information identifying individuals does 

not outweigh the risks of a data protection breach and it is therefore 
considered that the information should remain exempt from publication and 
public meetings. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The proposed write offs will be written off against the existing bad debt 

provisions.  
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications has been considered 

and there are none. 
 
 

Page 9



5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications have been 

considered and there are none. 
                   
 
Background papers:  None 
               
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name:  Mark Woolerton 
Direct line: 01775 764631 
Email:   mark.woolerton@cpbs.com 
 
Key Decision – No  
 
Confidential Appendices attached to this report for consideration: 
 
� Appendix A – Council Tax Write Offs 
� Appendix B – Business Rate Write Offs 
� Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) Write Offs 
� Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears Write Offs 
� Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayment Write Offs 

Page 10



A
genda Item

 10.

P
age 11

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 18

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Write Offs
	10. Write Offs
	11. Environmental Services Organisational and Services Review

